
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

CITY OF MILLERSBURG 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Tuesday, May 15, 2018 
6:00 p.m. 

 
 

Agenda 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
 

D. MEETING MINUTE APPROVAL 
1) Planning Commission Meeting & Public Hearing – 4-17-18 

 
E. QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1) Land Use File PA 18-02 Samaritan Health Partition. The applicant is 
requesting approval to partition 4.73 acres into 2 industrial parcels 
of 2.67 acres and 1.48 acres. In addition, a 0.58 acre street 
dedication bisects the 2 proposed parcels. 
 

F. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Upcoming Meetings: 
May 17, 2018 @ 6:00 p.m. – Second Budget Committee Meeting & Public 
Hearing 
May 22, 2018 @ 4:00 p.m. – City Council Worksession 

Rules of Conduct for Public Hearings 
 
1. No person shall be disorderly, abusive, or disruptive of the orderly 
conduct of the hearing. 
 
2. Persons shall not testify without first receiving recognition from the 
presiding officer and stating their full name and residence address.  
 
3. No person shall present irrelevant, immaterial, or repetitious testimony 
or evidence. 
 
4. There shall be no audience demonstrations such as applause, 
cheering, display of signs, or other conduct disruptive of the hearing. 

The location of the meeting/hearing is accessible to the disabled. If you need special accommodations to attend or 
participate, please notify the City Recorder in advance by calling (541) 928-4523. 

www.cityofmillersburg.org 

http://www.cityofmillersburg.org/


 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF MILLERSBURG 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Tuesday, April 17, 2018 
6:00 p.m. 

 
 

Minutes 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: Commission President Jimmy Kirkendall called the meeting to order 
at 6:00pm. 

 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
ROLL CALL:  
Members Present:  Anne Peltier, Steve Vogler, Scott Stimpson, Dennis Gunner, 

Connie Lepin, Jimmy Kirkendall, and Ed Perlenfein 
Members Absent:  John Sullivan and Ryan Penning 
Staff Present: Jake Gabell, Deputy Recorder; and Matt Straite, City Planner 
 

C. MEETING MINUTE APPROVAL 
1) Planning Commission Meeting & Public Hearing, 3-20-18 

i. Connie Lepin had a correction for the minutes regarding a double entry of 
an adjustment to lot #s. Correction was entered twice but should only show 
under SD 18-01, Westwood Estates. 

 
Action: Motion to Accept the Minutes as Amended made by Anne Peltier, 
seconded by Ed Perlenfein 
President Kirkendall:  Aye 
Commissioner Gunner: Aye 

 Commissioner Lepin: Aye 
 Commissioner Peltier: Aye 
 Commissioner Perlenfein: Aye 
 Commissioner Stimpson: Aye 
 Commissioner Vogler: Aye 

 
Public Hearing opened by Commission President Kirkendall. 
 

D. QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1) Land Use File 18-01 Yutzie Partition. The applicant is requesting approval to 

partition 5.31 acres into 2 residential lots of 0.38 acres and 4.93 acres. 



 

i. City Planner, Matt Straite, presented a staff report for the Yutzie Partition. 
1. Mr. Straite made a correction to the staff report: there are no 

wetlands on the property, only a flood zone. 
2. Commissioner Lepin noted that in the staff report, all current 

structures on the property would be removed, and the applicant 
does not intend to remove any building. 

ii. Steve Yutzie, applicant, gave a presentation on his partition request. The 
applicant stated that he intends to sell the larger property and 
eventually place a manufactured home on the proposed smaller 
property. 

iii. Citizen Corbett Richards, 6218 Mesa Court, had several questions about 
the development of the property specifically around wetlands, the 
floodplain and building. Mr. Straite noted the applicant is not putting up 
a building and explained how the process works.   

iv. Citizen Don Miller, 2720 Millersburg Drive, a neighbor to the proposal, 
stated that he has no objections to the partition. 

 
Public hearing on the application closed by the President. 
 

Action: Motion to Approve the Land Partition, as Amended to Exclude the 
Statement in the Staff Report that Applicant Intended to Remove All Buildings on 
the Property, made by Commissioner Perlenfein; seconded by Commissioner 
Peltier 
 
Discussion: Commissioner Lepin requested an amendment to the motion to 
exclude the statement in the staff report, which stated that the applicant 
intended to remove all the buildings on the property. 
 
President Kirkendall:  Aye 
Commissioner Gunner: Aye 

 Commissioner Lepin: Aye 
 Commissioner Peltier: Aye 
 Commissioner Perlenfein: Aye 
 Commissioner Stimpson: Aye 

  Commissioner Vogler: Aye 
 

E. Meeting adjourned at 6:26 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted:     Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
 
Jake Gabell       Kimberly Wollenburg 
Deputy City Recorder     City Recorder 
 

The location of the meeting/hearing is accessible to the disabled. If you need special accommodations to attend or 
participate, please notify the City Recorder in advance by calling (541) 928-4523. 

www.cityofmillersburg.org 

http://www.cityofmillersburg.org/


PA 18-02 Samaritan Health Partition    Page 1 of 10 
Staff Report to Planning Commission – May 15, 2018 
 

 
City of Millersburg                                                                               April 30, 2018 
STAFF REPORT:  
 
File No: PA 18-02 Samaritan Health Land Partition   
 
 

 
Proposal: The applicant is requesting approval to partition 4.73 acres into 2 industrial parcels 
of 2.67 and 1.48 acres.  In addition a 0.58 acre street dedication bisects the two proposed 
parcels.    
 
I. BACKGROUND 
 

A. Applicant: Samaritan Health Services; Tyler Jacobsen, General Counsel 
3600 NW Samaritan Drive 
Corvallis, OR 97330 

 
B. Location:   6512 NE Old Salem Road 

 10S 3W 16 Tax Lot 1400 
 
C. Review Type: Pursuant to the Millersburg Land Use Development Code (Code Section 

2.320), the proposed partition requires a public hearing before the Planning Commission.  
The Planning Commission is scheduled to hear the application on May 15, 2018.  Any 
appeal of the Planning Commission decision will be considered by the City Council. 
 

D. Public Notice and Hearing: Notice of the May 15, 2018 Planning Commission hearing was 
mailed to all property owners within 100 feet of the proposed location, transmitted to the 
Democratic Herald and posted at City Hall on April 6, 2018. 

 
E. Review Criteria: Article 2 §2.328 Subdivisions (and Partitions) 

 
F. Current Zoning: Limited Industrial (LI)  
 
G. Proposed Zoning:  N/A 
 
H. Property Size: 4.73 Gross Acres  
 
I. Background: Based on aerial images, the property featured a single family home on the 

lower southwest portion of the property; however, the structure was removed in 2016.  Staff 
is not aware of any other applications on the site. 

 
The site is generally flat, with dense vegetation, wetlands, and FEMA floodplains.  Power 
lines cross the property in a 125’ wide BPA Easement.    

 
This application is partially a result of a three-way Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
between the City, the County and the applicant to address needed right-of-way through 
the project site.  See attached MOU and document order number 2017-117 (the MOU is 
included within the applicant’s narrative).   
 



PA 18-02 Samaritan Health Partition    Page 2 of 10 
Staff Report to Planning Commission – May 15, 2018 
 

II. AFFECTED AGENCY, PUBLIC NOTICE, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Agencies: 
The applicant’s materials were transmitted to the following agencies/departments on April 4, 
2018: City of Albany, Albany Fire Department, Linn County Sheriff Office, City of Millersburg 
Engineer, Oregon Department of State Lands, PacificCorp, Linn County Planning and Building 
Department, Linn County GIS, Jefferson Fire, Northwest Natural Gas, United States Postal 
Service, and Republic Services.  To date, the following comments have been received: 
 

• Linn County Sheriff’s Department had no comments 
• Linn County GIS had no comments 
• The City of Albany had no comments 
• The Jefferson Fire Department had no comments 
• PacificCorp had no comments 
• City of Millersburg Engineer provided suggested conditions of approval  

 
Public:  
Notice of the May 15, 2018 hearing was mailed to all property owners within 100 feet of the 
property.  To date, no written comments or phone calls have been received by staff. 
 
 

III. CRITERION 
 
CITY OF MILLERSBURG DEVELOPMENT CODE  

 
Article 2 
 
SECTION 2.328 TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION DECISION CRITERIA 
A Subdivision or Partition Tentative Plan shall be approved by the Planning Commission. 
Approval shall be based upon compliance with the submittal requirements specified above 
and the following findings: 

 
(1) That the proposed land division, development or use does not conflict with the 

City's Comprehensive Plan or Statewide Planning Goals. 
 
ANALYSIS: The Oregon State Goals that are applicable to this area are carried out 
through the Comprehensive Plan and zoning ordinance.  The City uses a one map 
system, meaning the Comprehensive Land Use Designations are the same as the zoning 
designations.  The designation for the property is Limited Industrial (LI).  The proposed 
land partition supports the LI goals and policies.  A more detailed review of the 
Comprehensive Plan is located later in this report.   

 
FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the criterion. 

 
(2) That the proposed land division complies with the standards of the land use zone and 

does not conflict with city codes and ordinances that are applicable to the land 
division. 
 
ANALYSIS: The standards of the land use zone, and those found in Article 5 of the 



PA 18-02 Samaritan Health Partition    Page 3 of 10 
Staff Report to Planning Commission – May 15, 2018 
 

Code are reviewed below.  Standards are generally employed by the Commission as 
Site Plan Reviews are processed.  The applicant is not proposing any development at 
this time, simply the lot split.  Because the zoning standards generally apply to 
development (when actual buildings are proposed), most standards do not apply  to 
proposed land partitions.  The proposed partition meets the zoning standards.  To help 
show that the proposed parcels can accommodate future development that can 
comply with the zoning standards, the applicant has provided a conceptual site plan.  
This conceptual plan shows that a typical development is possible on the parcels.  It 
should also be noted that conditionally permitted uses in the LI Zone include all the 
uses permitted in the Community Commercial Zone.  This is important because the 
buildings on the new parcels do not have to be large warehouses or factories; they 
could also be small commercial buildings and developments.   

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the criterion. 
 
(3) That the proposed land division complies with the standards and requirements of 

ORS Chapter 92 and the recording requirements of the Linn County Surveyor. 
 
ANALYSIS: ORS Chapter 92 regulates subdivisions in the State of Oregon.  The State 
regulations require a City to draft its own laws and ordinances in order to have local 
authority to approve or act on subdivision applications.  The City of Millersburg has 
adopted local laws, policies and procedures to regulate subdivisions to comply with 
Chapter 92.  Other aspects of State Chapter 92 still apply; however, they generally 
pertain to circumstances that do not relate to the approvals of subdivisions by cities.  
Chapter 92 does not include any criteria specific to the approval of a subdivision.  The 
proposed application is consistent with all provisions of Chapter 92. 
 
FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the criterion. 

 
(4) That any undeveloped portion of the proposed land division can be developed in 

accordance with City ordinances. 
 
ANALYSIS: Minimum lot size for the Limited Industrial Zone is driven by the Site Plan 
review process (Section 4.132(4)(a)).  As no Site Plan review is proposed at this time, 
the applicant has provided a conceptual site plan to show that the proposed new 
parcels can accommodate future developed according to the setbacks and other 
provisions of the code.1       

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the criterion. 
 
(5) That the proposed land division does not preclude development on adjoining 

properties. 
 
ANALYSIS: The proposed partition is creating two parcels, both fronting on NE Old 
Salem Road.  The design of the partition does not limit the ability of neighboring 
properties to access NE Old Salem Road, in fact, the applicant has already entered 
into an MOU with the County and the City to provide a new road that will help other 
sites access NE Old Salem Road. The proposal will increase access for other parcels.   

                                                           
1 It should be noted that the northern portion of the property contains wetlands.  The middle contains FEMA 
flood plains.  These constraints may also limit future development.   



PA 18-02 Samaritan Health Partition    Page 4 of 10 
Staff Report to Planning Commission – May 15, 2018 
 

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the criterion. 
 

(6) That the proposed street plan is in conformance with City standards and provides the 
most economic, safe and efficient circulation of traffic in relation to the existing City 
street system and does not have an adverse impact on pedestrian, bicycle and 
vehicular safety. 
 
ANALYSIS:  The streets for the development are regulated by Section 5.123.  According 
to the City Transportation System Plan (TSP) NE Old Salem Road is designated as an 
Arterial.  Section 5.123 explains that the ultimate ROW is designed in the TSP and in the 
code as a 60-foot two lane ROW. Old Salem is currently constructed to 60 foot ROW 
Arterial standards, as defined in the TSP including sidewalks.  While an additional street 
right-of-way dedication is proposed, the construction of said street is not proposed or 
required at this time.  Thus, no improvements of any kind are required for this 
application. 

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the criterion. 
 
(7) That water, wastewater disposal and utilities are available and have the capacity to 

serve the proposed development or use in compliance with the Albany Construction 
Standards adopted the City of Millersburg. 
 
ANALYSIS: All utilities are located within NE Old Salem Road.  Actual capacity will be 
determined at the development stage because this is within an industrial zone.     

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the criterion. 
 
(8) That the proposed utilities do not preclude extension beyond the proposed land 

division to accommodate future growth. 
 

ANALYSIS: This land division does not block or impede the future extension to the east 
of the existing public sanitary sewer and existing public water, which are both located 
on the south-east side of SW Old Salem Road.  Further, the additional street right-of-
way dedication proposed with this division will allow extension of the existing utilities to 
the northwest to serve the Morningstar Road area.     

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the criterion. 
 

(9) That the land division will not cause adverse impacts to existing or proposed 
drainageways including flow disruptions, flooding, contamination or erosion and that 
required drainage facilities are provided that have the capacity to support the 
proposed development or use. 

 
ANALYSIS: There is a FEMA floodway going through the site (as shown on the 
applicant’s exhibit).  This drainage is within a 25 foot drainage easement and 
additional setbacks are required through the City Code (see Section 5.118(2)).  The 
identification on the map and the setback requirements of the Code help assure that 
that the existing drainage ways will remain undisturbed.     

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the criterion. 
 
(10) That the land division will not cause adverse impacts, potential hazards or nuisance 



PA 18-02 Samaritan Health Partition    Page 5 of 10 
Staff Report to Planning Commission – May 15, 2018 
 

characteristics as identified in Section 2.140, Item 21 of the Application Site Plan and 
complies with the applicable standards of all regulatory agencies having jurisdiction. 

 
ANALYSIS: The characteristics identified in Section 2.140 include hazards and nuisances 
produced by the project specifically identifying noise, water quality, vibration, smoke, 
odor, fumes, dust, heat, glare, and electromagnetic interference. Because this is an 
industrial partition, no actual development is proposed at this time.  

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the criterion does not apply. 
 

(11) That the land division will not cause adverse impacts to special site features 
identified in Section 2.140, Item 15 of the Application Site Plan. 

 
ANALYSIS: The site features wetlands as identified in the Linn County GIS system.  As 
such, the project was transmitted to the Oregon Department of State Lands (DSL) for 
review.  The applicant’s exhibits do not show any wetlands.  A condition of approval 
has been added to require the applicant to add wetlands to the Final Plat unless a 
wetland delineation, approved by the DSL can be provided explaining there are no 
wetlands on the property.   

The site also features FEMA floodplains.  As such, the provisions of Code Section 7.100 
apply.  The Flood areas are shown on the map.       

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, with the proposed conditions of approval, the 
project meets the criterion. 
 
PROPOSED CONDITION OF APPROVAL: The final plat shall show all wetlands unless a 
wetland determination, approved by the Oregon Department of State Lands, shows 
no wetlands are on site.   
 
 

IV. STANDARDS 
 

The proposed subdivision design complies with all the specifications and design requirements 
of Chapter 4, specifically the LI zone, and Chapter 5, Development Standards, with the 
following exceptions: 

 
SECTION 5.119 WETLANDS & RIPARIAN AREAS 

 
The City of Millersburg does not have a Local Wetlands Inventory (LWI). The City requires all 
applicants to identify riparian areas, wetlands and floodplains on the Application. All 
applications are required to comply with State Law and with the standards required by this 
Code. Refer to Sections 7.100, 7.200 and 7.300 for additional Special Area Standards. 

 
ANALYSIS: The Project site features wetlands based on the GIS system for Linn County.  
Pursuant to code requirements, the project was submitted to DSL for review.   DSL did not 
provide any comments.  No actual development (structures) or street/utility construction is 
proposed or required with this application.  Therefore, there will be no impacts to the 
wetlands resulting from this application. Future development of the proposed parcels will 
be required to comply with all wetlands requirements.  A condition has been added 
requiring all wetlands to be shown on the final plat.       

 



PA 18-02 Samaritan Health Partition    Page 6 of 10 
Staff Report to Planning Commission – May 15, 2018 
 

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, with the proposed condition of approval below, the 
project meets the standard. 

   
SECTION 5.127  WATER 

 
(1) When Municipal Water is Available. All new development including a single-family 
residence must extend and connect to the municipal water system. Fire hydrants, mains, 
and related appurtenances shall be installed by the developer as required by the City and 
Fire District. 

 
SECTION 5.128 SANITARY SEWERS 

 
(1) When Municipal Sewer is Available. All new development including a single family 
residence must extend and connect to the municipal sewer system. 
 
ANALYSIS: The map is not required to show proposed water or sewer connections because 
no development is proposed and utilities are available at both proposed parcels frontage 
on Old Salem Road.   
 
FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the standard. 

 
V. CITY OF MILLERSBURG COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 

The City of Millersburg Comprehensive Plan implements the 19 State Goals.  Based on staff 
review, the project is consistent with all goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan.  The 
following are relevant and pertinent policies from the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Section 9.590  Land Use Goals and Policies 
 

Industrial Land Use 1. The land districts shall be reserved for industrial development 
although interim farm use is an allowed permitted use until development occurs.  
 
Industrial Land Use 6.  Industrial proposals shall provide sufficient parcel size for building 
setbacks, expansion, off-street parking and loading, natural buffers and landscaping, 
and controlled access locations.    
 
ANALYSIS: The proposed project is a land partition, and is not proposing any actual 
development at this time.  The smaller proposed lots will still remain viable for smaller 
light industrial developments in the future; therefore, the proposal will not impact this 
Comprehensive Plan Policy as the site will still remain viable for light industrial uses.  The 
applicant provided a sample diagram showing that a typical development project 
could fit within the limits while respecting setbacks.   
 
FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the policy.  
 
Industrial Land Use 12.  Industrially zoned sites should remain at their present parcel size 
until a specific development plan is approved.   
 
Industrial Land Use 14. Potential industrial sites should remain at their present parcel size 
until a specific development plan is approved.  



PA 18-02 Samaritan Health Partition    Page 7 of 10 
Staff Report to Planning Commission – May 15, 2018 
 

 
ANALYSIS: The applicant has entered into an agreement with the City and the County 
to dedicate the road through the middle of the parcel.  While the land partition is 
acting as a vehicle to dedicate the road, it could be dedicated without the partition.    
However, it is important to point out that the dedication will essentially split the property 
with or without the proposed land partition.  The intent of the policy is simple- to assure 
that industrial development parcels stay large enough to be viable for industrial uses, 
which typically require larger properties. In order to help show the industrial viability of 
the smaller proposed parcels, the applicant has included a typical conceptual 
development plan.  This plan is not binding, nor does this partition approve this 
conceptual development in any way.  It does, however, show that the smaller sites 
could still support industrial development while meeting all required standards.    
 
FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the intent of the policies.  

 
 
VI. RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the above findings of fact, and the conditions of approval, the proposed project 
satisfies the applicable criteria and staff recommends the Planning Commission approve 
Partition Application No. SD 18-02, the Samaritan Health Land Partition pursuant to the 
conditions of approval listed below.   

 
VII. ALTERNATIVE RECOMMENDATION 
 

Should the Planning Commission not elect to approve the proposed development, they could 
continue the item for further discussion or deny the application siting the specific criteria not 
satisfied by the application.    

 
VIII.  CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

General Conditions 

1. The Final Partition Plat and any future development and/or construction on the site shall 
conform substantially to the tentative partition plat submitted by Cole Surveying, LLC dated 
February 19, 2018, except as modified in the conditions below.   

2. Copies of any required federal or state permits that may be required shall be filed in the 
Record File of this application. 

 
3. Submit the final plat for review to the Planning Department. 

4. This approval does not negate the need to obtain permits, as appropriate from other local, 
state, or federal agencies, even if not specifically required by this decision. 

Prior to Approval of the Final Plat 
 

5. The final plat shall show all wetlands unless a wetland determination, approved by the Oregon 
Department of State lands, shows no wetlands are on site.  
 



PA 18-02 Samaritan Health Partition    Page 8 of 10 
Staff Report to Planning Commission – May 15, 2018 
 

6. Prior to approval of the final plat the applicant must provide documentation to the City from 
Department of State Lands (DSL) that the enforcement action on violation case no. ENF-8014 is 
closed, and also provide documentation from the Army Corps Of Engineers (ACOE) that the 
ACOE concurs. 
  

7. The Final Plat shall include any required access or utility easements. 

 
 
IX. NOTICES TO THE APPLICANT 
 
The Applicant should also be aware of the following standards and processes are required for future 
development of the site. These are not part of the decision on this land use case and are provided as 
a courtesy to the applicant. Please contact Millersburg City Hall with any questions. 
 

1. This approval is valid for a period of two (2) years from the date of the decision notice. 
Extensions may be granted by the City as afforded by the Millersburg Development Code. 

2. The submittal by the applicant for final plat review and approval shall include but not be 
limited to the following: a final plat application; final plat review fee; narrative identifying how 
the required conditions of approval have or will be met; three copies of the final plat; and any 
other materials required to demonstrate compliance with the conditions of approval. 

3. Proposed Parcels 1 and 2 must connect to city water and sewer when facilities are placed on 
the parcels.  City water and sewer are available in Old Salem Road.  Applicant shall be 
responsible for all costs associated with making utility connections. 

4. At the time the property is developed (site plan review) public infrastructure, including roads, 
water, sewer, and storm drainage, must be submitted for review and approval by the City of 
Millersburg through a Private Construction of Public Infrastructure permit.  All work within the 
public right-of-way shall be designed by a licensed engineer and performed by a licensed 
contractor in conformance with the Albany Standard Construction Specifications as adopted 
by the City of Millersburg. 

5. Wetlands and FEMA floodplain are present on the site.  Work within wetlands and floodplain is 
subject to the requirements of the Authority Having Jurisdiction (AHJ). 
 

6. A right-of-way permit is required for any work in the public right-of-way, including utility 
connections, sidewalks, and driveways.  All pavement patching work shall conform to the City 
of Millersburg Trench Backfill and Pavement Patching Standards.  All work within the public 
right-of-way shall be performed by a licensed contractor and conform to the Albany Standard 
Construction Specifications, except as modified by the City of Millersburg Pavement Patching 
Standards. 

7. Driveways shall conform to Section 5.120 of the Millersburg Development Code, with individual 
driveway slopes not exceeding a grade of 14%.  



PA 18-02 Samaritan Health Partition    Page 9 of 10 
Staff Report to Planning Commission – May 15, 2018 
 

8. A demolition permit shall be obtained from the City prior to demolishing or moving any 
structures. 

9. Decks, fences, sheds, building additions, and other site improvements shall not be located 
within any easement unless otherwise authorized in writing by the City Engineer. 

10. All agreements required as conditions of this approval must be signed and recorded. 

11. Compliance with the Conditions of Approval is the responsibility of the developer or its 
successor in interest.  

12. The developer is responsible for all costs associated with any remaining public facility 
improvements and shall assure the construction of all public streets and utilities within and 
adjacent to the tentative map as required by these conditions of approval, to the plans, 
standards, and specifications of the City of Millersburg.   

13. The continual operation of the property shall comply with the applicable requirements of the 
Millersburg Development Code. 

14. Retaining walls within public easements or the public right-of-way shall require engineering 
approval.  Retaining walls with a height of 4 feet or higher located on private property will 
require a permit from the building department. 

15. Any existing wells, septic systems, and underground storage tanks shall be abandoned in 
accordance with Oregon state law, inspected by Linn County and provide verification for the 
file.  

16. The final plat shall show the City Manager as the City’s approving authority within the signature 
block of the final plat and all Private access easements, utility easements, and/or special use 
easements as required for the development of the site.  A plat note shall reference an 
easement and maintenance agreement or similar document, to be recorded with the plat, for 
the joint maintenance of any common private utility lines, common driveway improvements, 
or other common amenity or perimeter fencing.  The language of such plat note and 
associated document shall be reviewed and approved by the City Planner. 

17. All future required public improvement plans shall be approved by the City prior to beginning 
construction. All utilities shall remain uncovered until inspected and approved by the City.  
 

18. Prior to issuance of building permits, an electronic version of the final plat must be submitted to 
the City Planner. 

 
19. Dust shall be controlled within the development during construction and shall not be 

permitted to drift onto adjacent properties. 

20. Noise shall be kept at the minimum level possible during construction.  The developer shall 
agree to aggressively ensure that all vehicles working in the development shall have 
adequate and fully functioning sound suppression devices installed and maintained at all 
times. 



PA 18-02 Samaritan Health Partition    Page 10 of 10 
Staff Report to Planning Commission – May 15, 2018 
 

21. All construction sites shall be maintained in a clean and sanitary condition at all times.  
Construction debris, including food and drink waste, shall be restricted from leaving the 
construction site through proper disposal containers or construction fencing enclosures.  All 
construction equipment and materials shall not be stored in public right-of-way. Failure to 
comply with this condition may result in a “Stop Work” order until deficiencies have been 
corrected to the satisfaction of the City. 

22. Pursuant to Resolution 2008-10, park land dedication is required.  The City has determined that 
for this project, in-lieu fees are more appropriate.  All in-lieu fees will be collected with the 
system development charges.    

X. EXHIBITS   
A. Vicinity Map 
B. Zoning Map 
C. Applicant’s Site Plan/Map  
D. Applicant’s Narrative 
E. Albany Fire Letter dated 4/12/18 
F. City of Albany 4/5/18 
G. Jefferson Fire 4-17-18 
H. Linn County GIS 4/6/18 
I. Linn County Sheriff 4/5/18 
J. Pacific Corp 4/4/18 

 



 

Vicinity Map PA 18-02 

PROJECT SITE New Loves Truck 
Stop 



 

Zoning Map PA 18-02 

Limited 
Industrial 

(LI) 

Limited 
Industrial/Commercial (LIC) 



















































































1

Matt Straite

From: LaBelle, Chris <Chris.LaBelle@cityofalbany.net>
Sent: Thursday, April 12, 2018 8:25 AM
To: Matt Straite
Subject: RE: Request to review Millersburg project PA 18-02

Hi Matt,  
 
Lora has reviewed the project and Albany Fire has no comments or concerns at this time.  
 
Thanks  
Chris  
 

 

 

Chris LaBelle 
Safety Division Chief 
541-917-7703 office 

Albany Fire Department  
City of Albany, Oregon 
611 Lyon St SE, Albany, Oregon 97321 

fire.cityofalbany.net 

     

Get news releases and emergency notifications from 
the City of Albany by email or text message. Sign up 
at nixle.com or text 97321 to 888-777. 

 
 

From: Matt Straite <mstraite@cityofmillersburg.org>  
Sent: Wednesday, April 4, 2018 4:49 PM 
To: corcutt@linnsheriff.org; dsterling@co.linn.or.us; Billers@nwnatural.com; sflickinger@co.linn.or.us; 
jseale@co.linn.or.us; Scott.Seaton@pacificorp.com; jeff.r.lehmeyer@usps.gov; scott.shepherd@jeffersonfire.org; 
LaBelle, Chris <chris.labelle@cityofalbany.net>; Janelle Booth <jbooth@cityofmillersburg.org>; Planning List 
<PlanningList@cityofalbany.net> 
Subject: Request to review Millersburg project PA 18‐02 
 

The City of Millersburg is requesting your review of the attached project.  Please see project transmittal for 
more information or contact me.   

 
Matt Straite 
City Planner 
City of Millersburg 
541‐928‐4523 
 



2

 
______________ 
DISCLAIMER: This e‐mail may be a public record of the City of Albany and may be subject to the State of Oregon 
Retention Schedule and may be subject to public disclosure under the Oregon Public Records Law. This e‐mail, including 
any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged 
information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, 
please send a reply e‐mail to let the sender know of the error and destroy all copies of the original message.  

 
______________ 
DISCLAIMER: This email may be considered a public record of the City of Albany and subject to the State of 
Oregon Retention Schedule. This email also may be subject to public disclosure under the Oregon Public 
Records Law. This email, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may 
contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is 
prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy 
all copies of the original message.  



1

Matt Straite

From: Martineau, David <David.Martineau@cityofalbany.net>
Sent: Thursday, April 05, 2018 8:10 AM
To: Matt Straite
Subject: FW: Request to review Millersburg project PA 18-02
Attachments: PA 18-02 Agency Notice.doc.pdf

Matt, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to review project PA 18‐02.  The City of Albany has no comments or concerns. 
 
Thanks, 
 
David 
 
David Martineau, AICP, CFM, Lead Current Planner 
City of Albany Community Development Department 
PO Box 490, Albany, Oregon 97321 
Phone: (541) 917‐7561; FAX: (541) 917‐7598 
david.martineau@cityofalbany.net 
http://www.cityofalbany.net/ 
 
 

From: O'Neil, Edie  
Sent: Thursday, April 5, 2018 8:06 AM 
To: Planners <Planners@cityofalbany.net> 
Subject: FW: Request to review Millersburg project PA 18‐02 
 
 
 

EDIE O’NEIL 
Community Development  
Admistrative Assistant 
 

From: Matt Straite <mstraite@cityofmillersburg.org>  
Sent: Wednesday, April 4, 2018 4:49 PM 
To: corcutt@linnsheriff.org; dsterling@co.linn.or.us; Billers@nwnatural.com; sflickinger@co.linn.or.us; 
jseale@co.linn.or.us; Scott.Seaton@pacificorp.com; jeff.r.lehmeyer@usps.gov; 
scott.shepherd@jeffersonfire.org; LaBelle, Chris <chris.labelle@cityofalbany.net>; Janelle Booth 
<jbooth@cityofmillersburg.org>; Planning List <PlanningList@cityofalbany.net> 
Subject: Request to review Millersburg project PA 18‐02 
 

The City of Millersburg is requesting your review of the attached project.  Please see project transmittal 
for more information or contact me.   

 
Matt Straite 



2

City Planner 
City of Millersburg 
541‐928‐4523 
 
 
______________ 
DISCLAIMER: This e‐mail may be a public record of the City of Albany and may be subject to the State of Oregon 
Retention Schedule and may be subject to public disclosure under the Oregon Public Records Law. This e‐mail, 
including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and 
privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the 
intended recipient, please send a reply e‐mail to let the sender know of the error and destroy all copies of the 
original message.  



TO: Matt Straite, City Planner 

FROM: Janelle Booth, Millersburg City Engineer 

DATE: April 25, 2018 

SUBJECT: PA 18-02 Samaritan Partition - Engineering Comments 

 

Engineering has reviewed the above project and has the following comments: 

 
1. Proposed Parcels 1 and 2 must connect to city water and sewer when facilities 

are placed on the parcels.  City water and sewer are available in Old Salem 
Road.  Applicant shall be responsible for all costs associated with making utility 
connections. 

2. All public infrastructure, including roads, water, sewer, and storm drainage, must 
be submitted for review and approval by the City of Millersburg through a Private 
Construction of Public Infrastructure permit.  All work within the public right-of-
way shall be designed by a licensed engineer and performed by a licensed 
contractor in conformance with the Albany Standard Construction 
Specifications as adopted by the City of Millersburg. 

3. The Final Plat shall include any required access or utility easements. 

4. All agreements required as conditions of this approval must be signed and 
recorded. 

5. Wetlands and FEMA floodplain are present on the site.  Work within wetlands and 
floodplain is subject to the requirements of the Authority Having Jurisdiction 
(AHJ). 

6. This approval does not negate the need to obtain permits, as appropriate from 
other local, state or federal agencies, even if not specifically required by this 
decision. 



1

Matt Straite

From: Seale, Jett <jseale@co.linn.or.us>
Sent: Friday, April 06, 2018 3:34 PM
To: Matt Straite
Subject: RE: Request to review Millersburg project PA 18-02

Hi Matt, 
 
This looks fine from my standpoint.   There’s a wide range of addresses available for those lots, so that shouldn’t be a 
problem. 
 
Regards, 
 
Jett 
 
Jett Seale 
GIS Analyst 
Linn County GIS Dept. 
P.O. Box 100 
Albany, OR  97321 
541-812-8762 
jseale@co.linn.or.us 
 
 
 

From: Matt Straite [mailto:mstraite@cityofmillersburg.org]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 04, 2018 4:49 PM 
To: Orcutt, Cathy (SO); Sterling, Derrick; Billers@nwnatural.com; Flickinger, Sandie; Seale, Jett; 
Scott.Seaton@pacificorp.com; jeff.r.lehmeyer@usps.gov; scott.shepherd@jeffersonfire.org; 
Chris.LaBelle@cityofalbany.net; Janelle Booth; planninglist@cityofalbany.net 
Subject: Request to review Millersburg project PA 18-02 
 

The City of Millersburg is requesting your review of the attached project.  Please see project transmittal for 
more information or contact me.   
 
Matt Straite 
City Planner 
City of Millersburg 
541‐928‐4523 
 



1

Matt Straite

From: CATHY ORCUTT <corcutt@linnsheriff.org>
Sent: Thursday, April 05, 2018 8:26 AM
To: Matt Straite
Subject: RE: Request to review Millersburg project PA 18-02

Matt, 
 
Its all good with me! 
Cathy 
 

From: Matt Straite [mailto:mstraite@cityofmillersburg.org]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 4, 2018 4:49 PM 
To: CATHY ORCUTT <corcutt@linnsheriff.org>; dsterling@co.linn.or.us; Billers@nwnatural.com; 
sflickinger@co.linn.or.us; jseale@co.linn.or.us; Scott.Seaton@pacificorp.com; jeff.r.lehmeyer@usps.gov; 
scott.shepherd@jeffersonfire.org; Chris.LaBelle@cityofalbany.net; Janelle Booth <jbooth@cityofmillersburg.org>; 
planninglist@cityofalbany.net 
Subject: Request to review Millersburg project PA 18‐02 
 

The City of Millersburg is requesting your review of the attached project.  Please see project transmittal for 
more information or contact me.   
 
Matt Straite 
City Planner 
City of Millersburg 
541‐928‐4523 
 



1

Matt Straite

From: Seaton, Scott <Scott.Seaton@pacificorp.com>
Sent: Wednesday, April 04, 2018 5:17 PM
To: Matt Straite
Subject: RE: Request to review Millersburg project PA 18-02

Looks fine.  Scott 
 

From: Matt Straite [mailto:mstraite@cityofmillersburg.org]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 04, 2018 4:49 PM 
To: corcutt@linnsheriff.org; dsterling@co.linn.or.us; Billers@nwnatural.com; sflickinger@co.linn.or.us; 
jseale@co.linn.or.us; Seaton, Scott <Scott.Seaton@pacificorp.com>; jeff.r.lehmeyer@usps.gov; 
scott.shepherd@jeffersonfire.org; Chris.LaBelle@cityofalbany.net; Janelle Booth <jbooth@cityofmillersburg.org>; 
planninglist@cityofalbany.net 
Subject: [INTERNET] Request to review Millersburg project PA 18‐02 
 

** STOP. THINK. External Email ** 

The City of Millersburg is requesting your review of the attached project.  Please see project transmittal for 
more information or contact me.   
 
Matt Straite 
City Planner 
City of Millersburg 
541‐928‐4523 
 


	Full Staff Report.pdf
	DRAFT PA 18-02 Staff Report 4.9.18
	City of Millersburg                                                                               May 8, 2018

	Vicinity Map PA 18-02
	Zoning Map PA 18-02
	PA 18-02 Exhibit
	doc03177220180426111734
	doc03177320180426111818
	Albany Fire 4-12-18
	City of Albany 4-5-18
	Engineering Conditions of Approval_Samaritan
	Linn County GIS 4-6-18
	Linn County Sheriff 4-5-18
	Pacific Corp 4-4-18
	ADP478E.tmp
	City of Millersburg                                                                               May 8, 2018

	ADP3A3.tmp
	City of Millersburg                                                                               May 8, 2018

	ADPE0B9.tmp
	City of Millersburg                                                                               May 8, 2018

	ADPAC03.tmp
	City of Millersburg                                                                               April 30, 2018



